
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

27 May 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Regulatory Board 
DATE: 8 June 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor,   (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board (ex-Officio)   

 
Councillor Earle (Chairman) 

  
 

Councillor Bradley 
Councillor Bradley 
Councillor Casey 
 

Councillor Hammond 
Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Regulatory Board 
8 June 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting, or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2022 (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 6 April 2022. 
 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 6 June 2022. The total time 
for deputations in favour and against shall not exceed 10 minutes) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such questions (s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon 
Monday 6 June 2022) 
 

 

6.   Election of Vice-Chairman   

 To elect from the Members of the Board a Vice-Chairman.   
 

 

7.   GAMBLING - REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES (Pages 
5 - 42) 

 

 The Council is required to review its Gambling Statement of 
Principles every three years, the current three-year period ended in 
February 2022. The purpose of this report is to bring the draft 
statement of Principles, together with the consultation responses, to 
this Board for approval for recommendation so that it can be adopted 
at Council. The statutory consultation exercise in respect of this 

 



Regulatory Board 
8 June 2022 

 
 

Statement has been completed.   
 

8.   Report of the Development Manager (Pages 43 - 64)  

 To consider the report of the Development Manager 
 

 

9.   Any Other Items   



Regulatory Board 
6 April 2022 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 6 APRIL 2022 

 
 
Councillor Burgess (Substituting for Mrs Morgan)   
 
Councillors Mrs Hook, Casey, Carter, Earle, Foster-Reed, Hammond, Mrs Jones, 
Miss Kelly, Westerby, Raffaelli (Substituting for Mrs Batty) and Scard (Substituting for 
Murphy) 
 
 
114. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillor Morgan, Councillor Murphy 
and Councillor Batty.  
 
115. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Mrs Hook declared an interest in agenda item 1 of the report of the Development 
Manager.  
 
116. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 2 MARCH 2022  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022 be signed as a true 
and correct record.  
 
117. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
A deputation was received on item 21/00470/FULL – 127 High Street Gosport.  
 
118. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
119. REPORT OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGER  
 
21/00470/FULL - ERECTION OF TWO STOREY BUILDING WITH ACCOMMODATION IN 
THE ROOF TO FORM 7NO. FLATS AFTER DEMOLITION OF EXISTING TWO STOREY 
BUILDING AND PART OF GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION, ALTERATIONS TO 
EXISTING TWO STOREY BUILDING AND FLAT WITH PART HIPPED/PART FLAT 
ROOF AND DORMER EXTENSIONS, INSTALLATION OF BALCONIES AND WINDOWS 
IN SIDE ROOF SLOPE, CREATION OF LANDSCAPED COURTYARD AND 4NO. 
PARKING SPACES AND REDUCTION OF FLOOR SPACE OF EXISTING GROUND 
FLOOR SHOP (CLASS E) (Conservation Area) (as amended by plans received 
15.02.2022) 
127 High Street  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 1DU     
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing application 
21/00470/FULL.  
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Regulatory Board 
6 April 2022 

 

2 

Miss McCubbin was invited to address the Board. She advised that there had been several 
changes to the design following discussions with the Planning and Conservation and 
Design Officers and had also been amended following consultees response.  
 
In addition, the proposal did not impact the front of the High Street and would be making 
use of void space to the rear.  
 
She advised the Board that demands from retailers were changing and that with the 
increase in internet shopping, not so much space was required. It was a mixed use 
development that would make the unit and the shop more sustainable.  
 
The development would improve Coates Road in a similar way to the Old Auction House 
and the residential accommodation was in a highly sustainable area.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the applicant believed that 
the tenant would stay and that this proposal would help to support this.  
 
The Board was also advised that it wasn’t anticipated that the shop would be out of use 
whilst the work was being undertaken.  
 
A Member sought clarification on the extractor fan referenced in the report and was advised 
that there would need to be mitigation to protect the amenity of the residents at 127, this 
could include triple glazed windows.  
 
A Member also sought clarification on the position of the Gosport Society with regard to the 
application and was advised that the Society did not support the application. Planning 
Officers had determined that it was acceptable with regard to design and mass and 
acknowledged that the work was to the rear of the site and not the frontage. 
 
In answer to a subsequent question, the Board was advised that if archaeological evidence 
was found, works would pause and any required work by the archaeologist would be 
undertaken.  
 
Members acknowledged that the parking levels fell slightly short of the Parking SPD but 
recognised that this was acceptable in a sustainable area.  
 
Members felt that it was a good scheme that would support the retailer.  
  
RESOLVED: That application 21/00470/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager.  
 
22/00087/FULL - ERECTION OF GABLE BUILD UP AND FRONT AND REAR DORMER 

WINDOWS 

27 Privett Place  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3SG     
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Development Manager detailing application 
22/00087/FULL.  
 
RESOLVED: That application 22/00087/FULL be approved subject to the conditions in the 
report of the Development Manager   
 



Regulatory Board 
6 April 2022 

 

3 

120. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
There were none.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.14 pm 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda item  

Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION 

Date of meeting: 8 June 2022 

Title: GAMBLING – REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 

Author: IAN RICKMAN, HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

Status: FOR RECOMMENDATION TO FULL COUNCIL 

 

Purpose 

The Council is required to review its Gambling Statement of Principles every three 

years, the current three-year period ended in February 2022. The purpose of this 

report is to bring the draft statement of Principles, together with the consultation 

responses, to this Board for approval for recommendation so that it can be adopted 

at Council. The statutory consultation exercise in respect of this Statement has been 

completed.   

 

 

Recommendation 

That the Board:  

i) Considers the draft document and incorporates any amendments as 
necessary; and 

ii) Recommends to Council the final draft Gambling Act 2005 Statement of 
Principles for adoption by Council. 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Council is required to review and 
publish every three years a Statement of Principles, for use in connection 
with applications and reviews. 
 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to bring the draft revised Statement of 
Principles, together with a summary of any consultation responses, to this 
Board for approval for recommendation to be adopted at Full Council.  
  

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 The Gambling Act 2005 introduced significant changes in the regulation of 
the Gambling Industry.  The majority of these changes fell to the Gambling 
Commission to implement.  Local Authorities were required to act as the 
licensing authority in relation to the licensing of premises and the issuing of 
permits for certain activities:  
 

 Casinos 

 Betting offices and racetracks 

 Bingo premises 

Agenda Item 7



 Adult gaming centres 

 Family entertainment centres. 
 

2.2 The Council is required to determine and publish, every three years, a 
Statement of Principles in relation to the exercise of its functions under the 
Gambling Act 2005.  The three-year period to which the current Statement 
of Policy relates ended in February 2022.  
 

2.3 The draft revised Statement of Policy can be seen at Appendix A to this 
report. 
 

2.4 
 

Due to no major changes in Legislation, Guidance, etc the Policy has had 
no significant changes made to it.  
 

2.5 Consultation with the bodies as per Appendix 1 of the revised draft 
Statement of Principles was undertaken between 1 October and 10 
December 2021.  
 

3.0 Details of any consultation responses. 
 

3.1 There were no consultation responses received.  
 

4.0 Risk Assessment 
 

4.1 The Council is required by statute to review and publish every three years 
a reviewed Gambling Act Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 
2005.  In the absence of such a statement it may not be possible to 
consider applications made under the Act.  
 

5.0 Conclusion 
 

5.1 This Council must adopt a three-yearly reviewed Gambling Act Statement 
of Principles issued under the Gambling Act 2005.  The reviewed 
Gambling Act Statement of Principles must be adopted by the Council for 
the period 2022-2025 
 

5.2 The reviewed Gambling Act Statement of Principles has been prepared for 
adoption in compliance with guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  Subject to any amendments the Board wish to make, the 
draft can be recommended for adoption by the Council.  
 

 

Financial Services comments: None received 

Legal Services comments: None received 

Equality and Diversity: None received 

Climate Change implications: None 

Crime and Disorder: The policy helps prevent Gambling being used 
as a source of criminal activity. 

Service Improvement Plan Without a revised policy in place, any decisions 



implications: made by the council in respect of Gambling 
could be easily challenged. 

Corporate Plan: Having an up-to-date Gambling Statement of 
Principles supports the Corporate Plan in that it 
supports the gambling economy and helps to 
deliver effective services in that area. 

Risk Assessment: We have had a Statement of Principles since 
the inception of the Gambling Act in 2005, it 
simply details the considerations taken into 
place when determining applications. It takes 
account of problem Gambling and the protection 
of children from harm. 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: Draft Statement of Principles 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Ian Rickman, Head of Environmental Health  

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

Gambling Act 2005 
 

Draft Statement of Principles 
 

June 2022 – June 2025 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 

APPENDIX B 

 



 

2 

Table of Contents  

Item   

                                         PART A 
1.  Introduction   

2.   A Profile of Gosport  

3.  The Statement of Licensing Principals and Consultation   

4.  Declaration   

5.  Responsible Authorities   

6.  Interested parties   

7.  Exchange of information   

8.  Enforcement   

9.  Licensing Authority functions   

PART B 
10.  Premises licences   

11.  Adult Gaming Centres   

12.  (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres   

13.  Bingo premises   

14.  Betting premises   

15.  Tracks   

16.  Travelling fairs   

17.  Provisional Statements   

18.  Reviews   

PART C 
19.  Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming 

machine permits  
 

 

20.  Alcohol Licensed premises gaming machine permits   

21.  Prize Gaming Permits   

22.  Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits   

23.  Temporary Use Notices   

24.  Occasional Use Notices   

APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 - CONSULTEES   

Appendix 2 - RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES   

 



 

3 

 
1.  Introduction  
 

1.1  Gosport Borough Council is the Licensing Authority for the 
Borough. The Authority will regulate gambling with integrity in the 
public interest.  

 
1.2  We are committed to avoiding duplication with other legislation and 

regulatory regimes as far as possible and will not replicate issues in 
this statement of principles, which are already legal requirements 
under other legislation such as health and safety and fire 
precautions.  

 
1.3  This statement of principles has been developed after having 

regard to the statutory guidance from the Gambling Commission 
and having given appropriate weight to the views of persons and 
organisations consulted.  

 
1.4  Section 349 of the Act requires the Licensing Authority to publish a 

statement of principles that we will apply in exercising our functions 
under the Act. This statement fulfils that statutory requirement.  

 
1.5  This statement of Principles will be applied during the 3-year period 

from June 2022 until June 2025 and during that time will be kept 
under review and revised when and if appropriate, during that 3-
year period.  

  
1.6  This document should be read in conjunction with the Act, 

Regulations made under the Act and Guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission. This statement is designed to be a 
strategic gambling policy, not an operational guide to the Act.  

 
1.7  In exercising our functions under the Gambling Act 2005, Gosport 

Borough Council as a licensing authority will have regard to the 
statutory licensing objectives, which are.  

 
1. Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or 

disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being 
used to support crime  

 
2. Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way  

 
3. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from 

being harmed or exploited by gambling. 
 
1.8  It should be noted that that the Gambling Commission has stated, 

“The requirement in relation to children is explicitly to protect them 
from being harmed or exploited by gambling “.  

 



 

4 

1.9  The Authority is aware that Section 153 of the Act requires it, in 
making decisions concerning premises licences and temporary use 
notices, to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far 
as we think fit:-  

 

 In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission  

 

 In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission  

 

 Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to 
the above) and  

 

 In accordance with this Statement of Principles (subject to the 
above).  

 
1.10  Nothing in this statement of principles will override the right of any 

person to make an application under the Act and have that 
application considered on its individual merits. Equally, nothing in 
this policy will undermine the right of any person to make 
representations on an application or seek a review of a licence 
where there is a legal power to do so.  

 
1.11  Previous legislation required that the grant of certain gambling 

permissions should take account of whether there was an 
unfulfilled demand for gambling facilities. We acknowledge that 
under this legislation, unmet demand is not a criterion for a 
Licensing Authority in considering an application.  

 
1.12  We appreciate that gambling can be an emotive subject but 

acknowledge that, in accordance with Gambling Commission 
Guidance for Local Authorities, “moral objections to gambling are 
not a valid reason to reject applications for premises licences".  

 
1.13  We will therefore consider any application in accordance with the 

Act, on its individual merits without regard to demand or moral 
objection to gambling in general.  

 
2.   Profile of Gosport 
 

2.1  Gosport Borough is located in South Hampshire on the western side 
of Portsmouth Harbour opposite the city of Portsmouth. The Borough 
is a peninsula of 2,750 hectares surrounded on three sides by The 
Solent and Portsmouth Harbour with almost 39 kilometres of 
coastline. It is predominately urban in character and contains two 
principal settlements, Gosport and Lee-on-the-Solent, separated by 
the Alver Valley.  

 
2.2 The population of the Borough is around 82,662 persons. The 

Borough is also one of the most densely populated areas in the South 



 

5 

East Region, with an urban density of 32.6 people per hectare. There 
are approximately 35,400 households.    

 
2.3 The Borough has changed in recent years, with the contraction of 

military establishments and accommodation and the development 
of the waterfront areas and industry in the Borough. 
 

2.4 The town centre of Gosport provides the commercial centre whilst 
there is another significant local commercial centre situated at Lee 
on the Solent 

 
2.5 The health of the people in Gosport is varied compared to the 

England Average and deprivation lower than average (Public 
Health England Health Profile 2014). Life expectancy for women is 
lower than the England average. Excess weight and smoking are 
the two health risks of concern. 

 
2.6 The majority of Gambling authorisations in place are for betting 

shops and the number of these in the Borough has remained fairly 
constant in recent years, currently there are 6 in the Borough. 
These are mainly located within defined commercial centres. 
 
 

3.  The Statement of Licensing Principles and Consultation 
 

3.1  Gosport Borough Council is required by the Gambling Act 2005 to 
publish a Statement of the Principles, which we propose to apply 
when exercising our functions. This statement must be published 
every three years. The statement must also be reviewed from “time 
to time” and any amended parts re-consulted upon. The statement 
must be then re-published. 

 
3.2 This statement of principles has been published following extensive 

consultation. A list of the persons we have sent this is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
3.3 The Gambling Act requires that the following parties be consulted 

by Licensing Authorities: 
 

 The Chief Officer of Police 

 One or more persons who appear to the authority represent the 
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the 
authority’s area 

 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent 
the interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the 
exercise of the authority’s functions under the Gambling Act 
2005. 

 



 

6 

3.4  Our consultation took place between October 2021 and December 
2021 and we have followed the Guidance to Licensing Authorities 
(GLA) on consultations available at 

 
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/Licensing-
authorities/Information-for-licensing-authorities/Guidance-to-
licensing-authorities.aspx. 

 
3.5  There were no consultation responses. 
 
3.6  This statement of principles will not override the right of any person 

to make an application, make representations about an application, 
or apply for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on its 
own merits and according to the statutory requirements of the 
Gambling Act 2005. 

 
4 Declaration 
 

4.1 In producing the final statement of principles, this licensing 
authority declares that it has had regard to the licensing objectives 
of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the 
statement of principles. 

 

5.  Responsible Authorities 

 
5.1 Gosport Borough Council is required by regulations to state 

the principles that we will apply in exercising our powers 
under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a 
body which is competent to advise the authority about the 
protection of children from harm. 

 
5.2  The principles we will use are: 
 

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the 
whole of the licensing authority’s area 

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected 
persons, rather than any particular vested interest group etc. 

 
5.3 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for 

Licensing Authorities, we intend to designate the Hampshire 
County Council Child Protection Committee, Hampshire County 
Council for this purpose. 

 
5.4 This body has countywide responsibility, is subject to democratic 

accountability and is currently the body that has become a 
responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
5.5 The Responsible Authorities under the Gambling Act 2005 are: 

 Gosport Borough Council Licensing Authority 

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/Licensing-authorities/Information-for-licensing-authorities/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/Licensing-authorities/Information-for-licensing-authorities/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/Licensing-authorities/Information-for-licensing-authorities/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx


 

7 

 The Gambling Commission. 

 The Chief Constable, Hampshire Constabulary 

 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service  

 Gosport Borough Council Planning and Environmental Services 
Unit 

 Hampshire Child Protection Committee, Hampshire County 
Council Social Services Section 

 H.M. Revenue & Customs 
 

5.6 Subject to any other person being prescribed in Regulations made 
by the Secretary of State. The contact addresses for these 
authorities are attached at Appendix 2. 

 
6.  Interested Parties 
 

6.1  Interested parties can make representations about licence 
applications or apply for a review of an existing licence. These 
parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as follows: 

 
“For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in 
relation to an application for or in respect of a premises licence if, in 
the opinion of the licensing authority which issues the licence or to 
which the applications are made, the person: 
 

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the authorised activities, 

b) has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities, or 

c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)” 
 
6.2 We are required by regulations to state the principles we will apply 

in exercising our powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to 
determine whether a person is an interested party. 

 
6.3  Our principles will be that we will adopt the principles of natural 

justice and decide each case on its merits. We will not apply a rigid 
rule to our decision making but will apply local knowledge and 
integrity to each decision. 

 
6.4  The Licensing Authority takes note of the Gambling Commission’s 

Guidance that interested parties may include trade associations, 
trade unions, residents’ and tenants’ associations, and that the 
types of organisations that may be considered to have business 
interests will be interpreted broadly to include, for example, 
partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices. 

 
6.5  The licensing authority will not however generally view membership 

bodies as interested parties unless they have a member who can 
be classed as an interested person under the provisions of the Act.  

 



 

8 

6.6  Interested parties under Paragraph 6.1 (c) above can be persons 
who are democratically elected such as a ward Councillor, M.P. 
Etc. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested 
party will be required as long as the Councillor / M.P. Etc. 
represents the ward likely to be affected. Other than this, we will 
require any other person acting under Paragraph 6.1 (c) above to 
be nominated in writing by the appropriate interested parties at 
Paragraph 6.1 (a) or (b) above. 

 
6.7 When considering whether persons are interested parties in 

relation to any individual application we will consider: 
 

 the size of the premises. 

 the nature of the premises. 

 the distance of the premises from the location of the person 
making the representation. 

 the potential impact of the premises (number of customers, 
routes likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment); 
and 

 the nature of the complainant. This is not the personal 
characteristics of the complainant, but the interests of the 
complainant, which may be relevant to the distance from the 
premises. For example, it could be reasonable for us to 
conclude that “sufficiently close to be likely to be affected” 
could have a different meaning for (a) a private resident (b) 
a residential school for children with truanting problems and 
(c) a residential hostel for vulnerable adults 

 persons with business interests that could be affected 
 
6.8 If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent 

their views then care should be taken that the Councillors are not 
part of the Licensing Sub-Board dealing with the licence 
application. Those making representations should contact the Head 
of Environmental Health, Gosport Borough Council in the first 
instance rather than approach their Councillor directly. 

 
7.  Exchange of Information 
 

7.1 We are required to include the principles to be applied by the 
authority in exercising the functions under sections 29 and 30 of 
the Act with respect to the exchange of information between 
ourselves and the Gambling Commission, and the functions under 
section 350 of the Act with the respect to the exchange of 
information between it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to 
the Act. 

 
7.2 The principle that this licensing authority applies is that it will act in 

accordance with the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its 
exchange of information which includes the provision that the Data 
Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened. 



 

9 

 
7.3 We will also have regard to the Guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission to Licensing Authorities, as well as any future relevant 
regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers 
provided in the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
7.4 Should any protocol on information exchange be established in the 

future, such protocols will be publicly available. 
 
8.  Enforcement 
 

8.1 Licensing authorities are required by regulations under the 
Gambling Act 2005 to state the principles to be applied by the 
authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act with 
respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under 
section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of 
the offences specified. 

 
8.2 This licensing authority’s principles are that we will be guided by 

the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities and our 
policy will endeavour to be: 

 

 Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: 
remedies should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs 
identified and minimised. 

 Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions and be 
subject to public scrutiny. 

 Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and 
implemented fairly. 

 Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations 
simple and user friendly; and 

 Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and 
minimise side effects 

 
8.3 This licensing authority will also, as be recommended by the 

Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities, adopt a 
risk-based approach. Generally given the profile of the local area 
this will be a light touch approach; however, the Authority will 
investigate any complaints or issues brought to its notice as 
necessary given the circumstances in each case. 

 
8.4 The main enforcement and compliance role for this licensing 

authority in terms of the Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure 
compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions that 
it authorises. 

 
8.5 The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for 

Operator and Personal Licences. Concerns about manufacture, 
supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the 



 

10 

licensing authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission 
for investigation. 

 
8.6 This licensing authority will also keep itself informed of 

developments regarding the work of the Better Regulation 
Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local 
authorities. 

 
8.7 Any prosecution will only be commenced in accordance with the 

sufficiency of evidence and public interest criteria referred to in the 
Code for Crown Prosecutors issued in accordance with the 
Prosecution of Offences Act 1985. 

 
8.8 Any such prosecution will be commenced and conducted by the 

Head of Environmental Health in accordance with the powers 
delegated to him by the Council. 

 
9.  Licensing Authority Functions 
 

9.1 Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to: 
 

 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling 
activities are to take place by issuing Premises Licences 

 Issue Provisional Statements 

 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who 
wish to undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club 
Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine Permits 

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs 

 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming 
machines at unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres 

 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the 
Licensing Act 2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming 
machines 

 Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises 
licensed to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed 
premises, under the Licensing Act 2003, where more than two 
machines are required 

 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds 

 Issue Prize Gaming Permits 

 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices 

 Receive Occasional Use Notices 

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding 
details of licences issued (see Section 7 above on ‘information 
exchange) 

 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued 
under these functions 

 



 

11 

9.2 We as the licensing authority will not be involved in licensing 
remote gambling. Regulation of such activity will be the 
responsibility of the Gambling Commission via Operator Licences. 

 
9.3 In accordance with the Act and Guidance, this authority will: 
 

 Refer the decision whether to make a resolution not to issue 
casino licences within the Borough to full Council. 

 Refer approval of this three-year licensing policy to Full 
Council. 

 Refer the power to set fees to the appropriate decision-
making body as directed by the Borough Solicitor. 

 Delegate all decisions relating to premises licences to the 
licensing Board. 

 Invite the Licensing Board to further delegate decision 
making to a Sub-Board or officers in accordance with the 
law and guidance. 

PART B 
 
10  Premises Licences 
 

10.1 Premises Licences are subject to the permissions/restrictions set 
out in the Gambling Act 2005 and regulations, as well as specific 
mandatory and default conditions detailed in regulations issued 
by the Secretary of State. 

 
10.2 We, as the licensing authority, will be able to exclude default 

conditions and also attach other conditions, where we believe it 
to be appropriate. 

 
10.3  This licensing authority is aware that in making decisions about 

premises licences we should aim to permit the use of premises 
for gambling in so far as we think it is: 

 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by 
the Gambling Commission 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject 
to the above) and 

 in accordance with this statement of licensing policy (subject 
to the above). 

 
10.4 We appreciate that gambling can be an emotive subject but 

acknowledge that, in accordance with Gambling Commission 
Guidance for Local Authorities, “moral or ethical objections to 
gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for 



 

12 

premises licences “. Nor is unmet demand a criterion for a 
Licensing Authority.   

 
10.5 Premises are defined in the Act as “any place”. Different 

premises licences cannot apply in respect of single premises at 
different times. It is however possible for a single building to be 
subject to more than one premises licence, providing that each 
licence is for a different part of the building and such different 
parts can reasonably be regarded as different premises. 

 
10.6   We will judge each case on its individual merits to decide as a 

matter of fact, whether different parts of a building can be 
properly regarded as being separate premises. 

 
10.7  We note that the Gambling Commission, in their guidance, do 

not consider that areas of a building that are artificially or 
temporarily separate can be properly regarded as different 
premises. We support this view. 

 
10.8  This licensing authority takes particular note of the Gambling 

Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities which states that: 
 

 Licensing Authorities should take particular care in 
considering applications for multiple licences for a building 
and those relating to a discrete part of a building used for 
other (non-gambling) purposes. In particular, they should be 
aware that entrances and exits from parts of a building 
covered by one or more licences should be separate and 
identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not 
compromised, and that people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling 
area. 

 This Licensing Authority also notes that there are different 
rules regarding access to licensed premises through other 
premises (which themselves may be licensed or unlicensed. 

 The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to 
whether the proposed access is lawful and also whether it 
poses any risk to the licensing objectives, and in particular 
regarding access of children to gambling premises.  

 

10.9  Where an application is made for premises licence which have 
not yet been constructed, the Licensing Authority will consider 
the application in two stages. First, we will decide whether, as a 
matter of substance after applying the principles in s.153 of the 
Act, the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling; 
second, in deciding whether or not to grant the application we 
will consider if appropriate conditions can be put in place to 
cater for the situation that the premises are not yet in the state in 
which they ought to be before gambling takes place. 

 



 

13 

10.10 This licensing authority is aware that demand issues cannot be 
considered in relation to the location of premises but that 
considerations made in terms of the licensing objectives can be 
considered. 

 
10.11 We will, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s 

Guidance for local authorities, pay particular attention to the 
protection of children and vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and 
disorder. 

 
10.12 This authority has not adopted any specific policy in relation to 

areas where gambling premises should not be located. Should 
any such policy be decided upon, as a result of this consultation 
or otherwise, regarding such areas where gambling premises 
should not be located, this policy statement will be updated. 

 
10.13 It should be noted that any such future policy will not preclude 

any application being made and each application will be decided 
on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant to show how any 
potential concerns can be overcome. 

 
10.14 This authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other 

statutory / regulatory systems where possible, including the 
statutory planning regime. 

 
10.15 This Council acting as a licensing authority will not consider 

whether a licence application is likely to be awarded planning 
permission or building regulations approval in its consideration 
of an application for a Premises Licence. 

 
10.16 We will though, carefully consider any concerns about licensing 

conditions which are not able to be met by licensees due to 
planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 

 
10.17 The Planning Department is a responsible authority under this 

Act and have the opportunity to make representations should 
they desire, otherwise the two regimes will be properly 
separated. 

 
10.18 This authority will however listen to, and consider carefully, any 

concerns about conditions that are not able to be met by 
licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a situation 
arise. 

 
10.19 Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with 

the licensing objectives. In promoting these objectives, we have 
considered the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to local 
authorities and make the following observations: 

 



 

14 

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or 
disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being 
used to support crime 

 
10.20 The Gambling Commission’s guidance envisages that the 

licensing authority should pay attention to the proposed location 
of gambling premises in terms of this licensing objective. 

 
10.21 Therefore, where an area has known high levels of organised 

crime, we will consider carefully whether gambling premises are 
suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be 
suitable, such as the provision of door supervisors. Responsible 
authorities would however have the right to make 
representations with regard to such premises. 

 
10.22 We are aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance 

and will consider factors such as whether police assistance was 
required and how threatening the behaviour was to those who 
could see it, so as to make that distinction. It should be noted 
that nuisance is not a Gambling Act licensing objective. 

 
10.23 In considering licence applications, the Council will particularly 

take into account the following: 
 

 The design and layout of the premises. 

 The training given to staff in crime prevention measures 
appropriate to those premises.  

 Physical security features installed in the premises. This 
may include matters such as the position of cash registers or 
the standard of CCTV that is installed. 

 Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the 
procedures in place to conduct age verification checks. 

 The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing 
problem if the licence is granted. 

 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

 
10.24 This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission 

has stated that it would generally not expect licensing authorities 
to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted 
in a fair and open way as this will be addressed by the operator 
and personal licensing system. It is acknowledged that there is a 
greater role for the Licensing Authority in track gambling which 
is explained in Section 16 below. 

 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from 
being harmed or exploited by gambling 

 
10.25 We note the Gambling Commission Guidance to Local 

Authority’s states that this objective relates to preventing 



 

15 

children from taking part in gambling as well as restriction of 
advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at, or are 
particularly attractive, to children. 

 
10.26 We will therefore consider, as suggested by the Gambling 

Commission’s Guidance, whether specific measures are 
required at individual premises to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 
10.27 Appropriate measures may include supervision of access points, 

segregation of areas etc. 
 
10.28 We will also take account of the Codes of Practice regarding this 

objective in relation to specific types of premises. 
 

10.29 In reference to the term “vulnerable persons” we note that the 
Gambling Commission or statute law is not seeking to offer a 
definition but the Commission states that “it will for regulatory 
purposes assume that this group includes: 

 

 people who gamble more than they want to. 

 people who gambling beyond their means. 

 and people who may not be able to make informed or 
balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental 
impairment, alcohol or drugs.” 

 
10.30 This licensing authority will consider promotion of this licensing 

objective on a common sense, case by case basis. Should a 
practical definition prove possible in future then this policy 
statement will be updated with it, by way of a revision. 
 
Conditions on Premises Licences 

 
10.31 Any conditions we attach to licences will be proportionate and 

will be: 
 

 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable 
as a gambling facility 

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence 
applied for. 

 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of 
premises: and 

 reasonable in all other respects. 
 
10.32 The authority is aware that the mandatory and default conditions 

imposed by the Gambling Commission will normally be sufficient 
to regulate gambling premises. In exceptional cases where there 
are specific risks or problems associated with a particular 
locality, specific premises or class of premises, the authority 



 

16 

may consider attaching individual conditions related to the 
licensing objectives 

 
10.33 There are specific observations made in this regard under each 

of the licence types below. This licensing authority will also 
expect the licence applicant to offer their own suggestions as to 
way in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively. 

 
10.34 We will, where considered necessary, also consider specific 

measures for buildings which are subject to multiple premises 
licences. Such measures may include the supervision of 
entrances, segregation of gambling and non-gambling areas 
frequented by children and the supervision of gaming machines 
in non-adult gambling specific premises to promote the licensing 
objectives, in accordance with Gambling Commission Guidance. 

 
10.35 We will also ensure that where Category A to C gaming 

machines are on offer in premises to which children are 
admitted, other than premises licensed for the supply of alcohol 
under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 All such machines are located in an area of the premises 
which is separated from the remainder of the premises by a 
physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other 
than through a designated entrance 

 Only adults are admitted to the area where these machines 
are located 

 Access to the area where these machines are located is 
supervised 

 The area where these machines are located is arranged so 
that it can be observed by the staff or the licence holder, and 

 At the entrance to and inside any such areas there are 
prominently displayed notices indicating that access to the 
area is prohibited to persons under 18 years of age. 

 
10.36 These considerations will apply to premises including buildings 

where multiple premises licences are applicable. 
 
10.37 We are aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than 

one premises licence, provided that each licence relates to a 
specified area of the track. 

 
10.38 We will, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s 

Guidance, consider the impact upon the third licensing objective 
and the need to ensure that the entrances to each type of 
premises are distinct from each other and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted by 
law or condition, to enter 

 



 

17 

10.39 It is noted that there are conditions which the licensing authority 
cannot by law attach to premises licences which are: 

 

 any condition on the premises licence which makes it 
impossible to comply with an operating licence condition 

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, 
or method of operation. 

 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body 
be required (the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the 
membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this 
provision prevents it being reinstated) and 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes 
 
10.40 The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance that 

licensing authorities may consider whether there is a need for 
door supervisors in terms of the licensing objectives of 
protection of children and vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling, and also in terms of 
preventing premises becoming a source of crime. 

 
10.41 Door supervisors at bingo premises who are contract staff are 

required to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority; 
however, in house supervisors are exempt from this 
requirement. 

 
10.42 This licensing authority therefore has specific requirements for 

door supervisors working at bingo premises which are that a 
book is maintained in which is recorded. 

 

 the identity of the door staff deployed 

 the time they commenced duty and left duty, and 

 any incidents that they dealt with each day, and such a book 
shall be maintained and available for inspection for a period 
of 3 months from the date of the record entry. 

 
11  Adult Gaming Centres 
  

11.1 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need 
to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being 
exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 
authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
persons under 18 years of age do not have access to the 
premises. 

 
12  (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 
 

12.1  We will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by 
gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority 
that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18-



 

18 

year-olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine 
areas. 

 
12.2  We will expect applicants as part of their application to initially 

offer their own measures to promote the licensing objectives, 
however appropriate measures licence conditions may cover 
issues such as: 

 

 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-Barring Schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for 
support organisations such as GamCare 

 Measures / training for staff on how to deal with 
suspected truant school children on the premises 

 
12.3   We will, in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s 

guidance, refer to the Commission, and be aware of any 
conditions that apply to operating licences covering the way in 
which the area containing the Category C or higher machines, 
should be delineated. 

 
13  Bingo Premises 
 

13.1  This licensing authority notes that that the Gambling 
Commission Guidance states; “” For bingo and FEC premises, it is 

a mandatory condition that under-18s should not have access to areas 
where category B and C gaming machines are located and this is 
achieved through further mandatory conditions that require the area to 
be:  

 separated from the rest of the premises by a physical 
barrier which is effective to prevent access other than by 
an entrance designed for that purpose  

 supervised at all times to ensure that under-18s do not 
enter the area, and supervised by either:  

 one or more persons whose responsibilities include 
ensuring that under-18s do not enter the areas  

 CCTV monitored by one or more persons whose 
responsibilities include ensuring that under-18s do not 
enter the areas  

 arranged in a way that ensures that all parts of the 
area can be observed.  

 



 

19 

A notice must be displayed in a prominent place at the entrance 
to the area stating that no person under the age of 18 is 
permitted to enter the area.” 

 
13.2 We note that under the Act, children and young persons 

(anyone up to the age of 18) cannot be employed in providing 
any facilities for gambling on bingo premises, and children 
(under 16) cannot be employed, in any capacity, at a time when 
facilities for playing bingo are being offered. However, young 
persons, aged 16 and 17, may be employed in bingo premises 
(while bingo is being played), provided the activities on which 
they are employed are not connected with the gaming or gaming 
machines. 

 
13.3   We will consider restrictions that apply to such premises in the 

Gambling Commission codes of practice.  
 
14  Betting Premises 

 
14.1   We note that the Act contains a single class of licence for betting 

premises. However, within this single class of licence, there will 
be different types of premises which require licensing. This 
Section of our policy discusses off-course betting, that is betting 
that takes place other than at a track in what is currently known 
as a licensed betting office. Tracks are discussed in the 
following Section. It should be noted that there are also betting 
offices on tracks, that have a separate premises licence from the 
track licence. 

 
14.2   It is noted that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local 

authorities’ states “Section 181 contains an express power for 
licensing authorities to restrict the number of betting machines, 
their nature and the circumstances in which they are made 
available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises 
licence. 

 
14.3   We will, in accordance with the Gambling Commission 

guidance, when considering whether to impose a condition to 
restrict the number of betting machines in particular premises, 
amongst other things, take into account the size of the premises, 
the number of counter positions available for person-to-person 
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the 
machines by vulnerable persons.” 

 
14.4   This licensing authority will give sympathetic consideration to re-

sites within the same locality and extensions in order to enhance 
the quality of the facility provided for the benefit of the betting 
public 

 
 
 



 

20 

15  Tracks 
 
15.1  Tracks are sites (including horse racecourses and dog tracks) 

where races or other sporting events take place. Betting is a 
major gambling activity on tracks, both in the form of pool betting 
(often known as the “totalisator” or “tote”), and also general 
betting, often known as “fixed-odds” betting. 

 
15.2  There is no special class of betting premises licence for a track, 

but the Act does contain rules which apply specifically to 
premises licences granted in respect of a track. 

 
15.3   Special rules apply to applicants for a premises licence in 

relation to a track. Most importantly, as noted above, the 
applicant need not hold an operating licence. That is because, 
unless the occupier of the track wishes to offer pool betting (or 
general betting) facilities himself (for which he will need a 
licence), the betting that is provided upon the track will not be 
provided by him but will be provided by other operators who 
come on-course. Since those people will require the necessary 
operating licences, the Act allows the track operator to obtain a 
premises licence without also having to hold an operating 
licence. 
This track premises licences then authorises anyone upon the 
premises with an operating licence to offer betting facilities. 

 
15.4   We are aware that tracks are different from other premises in 

that there may be more than one premises licence in effect, 
each covering a specified area of the track. In accordance with 
the Gambling Commission guidance, this authority will 
especially consider the impact of the third licensing objective. 

 
15.5   There may be some specific considerations with regard to the 

protection of children and vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling and the need to ensure 
entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children 
are excluded from gambling or betting areas where they are not 
permitted to enter. 

 
15.6  We will expect the premises licence applicants to demonstrate 

suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to 
adult-only gaming facilities. 

 
15.7  Children and young persons will by law be permitted to enter 

track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days 
when dog-racing and/or horse racing takes place, although they 
are still prevented from entering areas where gaming machines 
(other than category D machines) are provided. 

 
15.8   Appropriate licence conditions may include: 
 



 

21 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Door supervisors 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 The location of gaming machines 

 Self-barring Schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare 

 
Gaming Machines on Tracks 

 
15.9   We still await further guidance from the Gambling Commission 

addressing where such machines may be located on tracks and 
any special considerations that should apply to promote for 
example, the third licensing objective. 

 
15.10  We note the Commissions guidance that licensing authorities 

therefore need to consider the location of gaming machines at 
tracks, and applicants for licences at tracks will need to 
demonstrate that, where the applicant holds a pool betting 
operating licence and is going to use the entitlement to 4 gaming 
machines, these machines will be located in areas from which 
children are excluded. Children and young persons will not 
however be excluded from playing Category D gaming 
machines on a track. 

 
 Betting machines 

 
15.11 Licensing authorities have a power under the Gambling Act 

2005, to restrict the number of betting machines, their nature 
and the circumstances in which they are made available, by 
attaching a licence condition to a betting premises licence. 

 
15.12  The Gambling Commission’s Guidance will be noted in that it 

states: “When considering whether to impose a condition to 
restrict the number of SSBTs in particular premises, the 
licensing authority, amongst other things, should take into 
account the ability of employees to monitor the use of the 
machines by children and young persons or by vulnerable 
people”. 

 
15.13  Similar considerations may apply in relation to tracks, where the 

potential space for such machines may be considerable, 
bringing with its significant problems in relation to the 
proliferation of such machines, the ability of track staff to 
supervise them if they are scattered around the track and the 



 

22 

ability of the track operator to comply with the law and prevent 
children betting on the machine. 

 
  Condition on Rules Being Displayed 

 
15.14  The Gambling Commission has advised in its Guidance for local 

authorities that “…licensing authorities should attach a condition 
to track premises licences requiring the track operator to ensure 
that the rules are prominently displayed in or near the betting 
areas, or that other measures are taken to ensure that they are 
made available to the public. For example, the rules could be 
printed in the race-card or made available in leaflet form from the 
track office.” 

 
16.  Travelling Fairs 
 
16.1   We note that we as the licensing authority are required to decide 

whether, where category D machines and / or equal chance 
prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use at 
travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities for 
gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the 
fair is met. 

 
16.2   The licensing authority will also consider whether the applicant 

falls within the statutory definition of a travelling fair. 
 
16.3  It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the 

land being used as a fair, is per calendar year, and that it 
applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, 
regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs 
occupying the land. This licensing authority will work with other 
departments of the Council and its neighbouring authorities to 
ensure that land which crosses our boundaries is monitored so 
that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 

 
17.  Provisional Statements 
 
17.1   This licensing authority notes the Guidance for the Gambling 

Commission which states that “It is a question of fact and 
degree whether premises are finished to a degree that they can 
be considered for a premises licence” and that “Requiring the 
building to be complete ensures that the authority could, if 
necessary, inspect it fully”. 

 
17.2   In terms of representations about premises licence applications, 

following the grant of a provisional statement, no further 
representations from relevant authorities or interested parties 
can be taken into account unless they concern matters which 
could not have been addressed at the provisional statement 
stage, or they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances. 
In addition, the authority may refuse the premises licence (or 



 

23 

grant it on terms different to those attached to the provisional 
statement) only by reference to matters: 

 
a) which could not have been raised by objectors at the 

provisional licence stage; or 

b) which is in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the 
operator’s circumstances. 

 
17.3   This authority has noted the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 

that “A licensing authority should not take into account irrelevant 
matters.... One example of an irrelevant matter would be the 
likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or 
building regulations approval for the proposal." 

 
18.  Reviews 
 
18.1   A premises licence may be reviewed by the licensing authority 

of its own volition or following the receipt of an application for a 
review, which is essentially a request by a third party to the 
licensing authority to review a particular licence. 

 
18.2   Section 200 of the Act provides that licensing authorities may 

initiate a review in relation to a particular class of premises 
licence or in relation to particular premises. Officers may be 
involved in the initial investigations of complaints leading to a 
review or may try informal mediation or dispute resolution 
techniques prior to a full-scale review being conducted, but the 
review itself, if necessary, will be heard by elected members. 

 
18.3   Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by 

interested parties or responsible authorities, however, it is for 
the licensing authority to decide whether the review is to be 
carried-out. 

 
18.4  An application for a review may be (but need not be) rejected if 

the licensing authority thinks that the grounds on which the 
review is sought: 

 
a) are not relevant to the principles that must be applied by 

the licensing authority in accordance with section 153. If 
the application raises issues that are not relevant to the 
Commission guidance/codes of practice, this policy 
statement, or the licensing objectives, then we may reject 
it. In addition, if the application raises general objections to 
gambling as an activity, that is likely to be irrelevant to the 
principles in section 153, given that we are required to 
permit the use of premises for gambling in so far, we think 
that permission is in accordance with the matters set out in 
that section. Examples that are likely to be irrelevant 



 

24 

include demand for gambling premises, issues relating to 
planning, public safety, and traffic congestion. 

b) the grounds are frivolous. 

c) the grounds are vexatious. 

d) the grounds “will certainly not” cause the authority to 
revoke or suspend a licence or to remove, amend or attach 
conditions on the premises licence. 

e) are substantially the same as the grounds cited in a 
previous application for review relating to the same 
premises. In these circumstances we will take into account 
how much time has passed since the earlier application in 
reaching a judgement about whether it is reasonable to rely 
on this as a reason not to review the licence; or 

f) are substantially the same as representations made at the 
time the application for a premises licence was considered. 
In these circumstances we will take into account the period 
of time that has passed since the representations were 
made, but the underlying requirement is that we should not 
review the licence on the basis of the same arguments 
considered on the grant of the premises licence. 

PART C 
 
19 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 

 
19.1   Family entertainment centres (FECs) will perhaps be most 

commonly located at seaside resorts, in airports and at 
motorway service centres, and will cater for families, including 
unaccompanied children and young persons. 

 
19.2   Unlicensed FECs will be able to offer only category D machines 

in reliance on a gaming machine permit. Any number of 
category D machines can be made available with such a permit. 
Permits cannot be issued to vessels or vehicles. 

 
19.3   Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes 

to provide gaming machines, it may apply to the licensing 
authority for this permit. It should be noted that the applicant 
must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for 
making gaming machines available for use as required by 
Section 238. 

 
19.4   The application for a permit can only be made by a person who 

occupies or plans to occupy the premises to be used as an 
unlicensed FEC and, if the applicant is an individual, he must be 
aged 18 or over. Applications for a permit cannot be made if a 
premises licence is in effect for the same premises. 

 



 

25 

19.5   The Gambling Act 2005 states that a licensing authority may 
prepare a statement of principles that they propose to consider 
in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit and in 
preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it 
need not (but may) have regard to the licensing objectives and 
shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the 
Commission under section 25. 

 
19.6   The Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities also 

states: “In their three-year licensing policy statement, licensing 
authorities may include a statement of principles that they 
propose to apply when exercising their functions in considering 
applications for permits…., licensing authorities will want to give 
weight to child protection issues." 

 
19.7   The Guidance also states: “...An application for a permit may be 

granted only if the licensing authority is satisfied that the 
premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the chief 
officer of police has been consulted on the application….  
Licensing authorities might wish to consider asking applications 
to demonstrate: a full understanding of the maximum stakes and 
prizes of the gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs; 

 that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that 
are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and 

 that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the 
maximum stakes and prizes.  

 

19.8  We note that a licensing authority can grant or refuse a licence 
but cannot attach conditions to this type of permit. 

 
19.9   This licensing authority will expect the applicant to show that 

there are policies and procedures in place to protect children 
from harm. Harm in this context is not limited to harm from 
gambling but includes wider child protection considerations. 

 
19.10   The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be 

considered on their merits. However, they may include 
appropriate measures / training for staff as regards suspected 
truant school children on the premises, measures / training 
covering how staff would deal with unsupervised very young 
children being on the premises, or children causing perceived 
problems on / around the premises 

 
20.  (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 

 
20.1  There is provision in the Act for premises licensed under the 

Licensing Act 2003 for the sale of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of 
categories C and/or D. Licence holders merely need to notify the 
licensing authority. 



 

26 

 
20.2   The licensing authority can remove the automatic authorisation 

in respect of any particular premises if: 
 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent 
with the pursuit of the licensing objectives. 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a 
condition of section 282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that 
written notice has been provided to the licensing 
authority, that a fee has been provided and that any 
relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission about the location and operation of the 
machine has been complied with); the premises are 
mainly used for gaming; or 

 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed 
on the premises. 

 
20.3   If a premises licence holder wishes to have more than 2 

machines, then they need to apply for a permit and the licensing 
authority must consider that application based upon the 
licensing objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 2005, and 
“such matters as they think relevant.” 

 
20.4   This licensing authority considers that “such matters” will be 

decided on a case-by-case individual basis, but generally there 
will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling and will 
expect the applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be 
sufficient measures to ensure that under18 year olds do not 
have access to the adult-only gaming machines. 

 
20.5   Measures which will satisfy the authority that there will be no 

access may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, 
or in the sight of staff who will monitor that the machines are not 
being used by those under 18. Notices and signage on the 
machines or in the premises may also be help. As regards the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to 
consider the provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers 
for organisations such as GamCare. 

 
20.6   It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply 

for a premises licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any 
such application would normally need to be applied for, and 
dealt with, as an Adult Gaming Centre premises licence. 

 
20.7   It should be noted that we as the licensing authority can decide 

to grant the application with a smaller number of machines 
and/or a different category of machines than that applied for. 
Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached to a permit. 



 

27 

 
20.8   It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply 

with any Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission 
about the location and operation of the machine. 

 
21.  Prize Gaming Permits 
 
21.1   The Gambling Act 2005 states that a licensing authority may 

“prepare a statement of principles that they propose to apply in 
exercising their functions under this Schedule” which “may, in 
particular, specify matters that the licensing authority propose to 
consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a 
permit”. 

 
21.2   This licensing authority has prepared a Statement of Principles 

which is that the applicant should set out the types of gaming 
that he or she is intending to offer, and that the applicant should 
be able to demonstrate: 

a) that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that 
are set out in Regulations. 

b) and that the gaming offered is within the law. 
 
21.3   In making its decision on an application for this permit the 

licensing authority does not need to have regard to the licensing 
objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission 
guidance. 

 
21.4   It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 

2005 with which the permit holder must comply, but that the 
licensing authority cannot attach conditions. The conditions in 
the Act are: 

 

 The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, 
must be complied with. 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated 
on the premises on which the gaming is taking place and 
on one day; the game must be played and completed on 
the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the 
game must be made public in the premises on the day 
that it is played. 

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed 
the amount set out in regulations (if a money prize), or the 
prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to 
take part in any other gambling. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

28 

22.  Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 
 
22.1   Bona Fide Members Clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may 

apply for a Club Gaming Permit and such clubs and institutes 
and commercial clubs may apply for a Club Gaming machine 
permit. 

 
22.2   The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide 3 

gaming machines of categories B, C or D, equal chance gaming 
and games of chance as set-out in regulations still to be 
published. 

 
22.3   A Club Gaming machine permit will enable the premises to 

provide 3 gaming machines of categories B, C or D. 
 
22.4  Gambling Commission Guidance states: "Members clubs must 

have at least 25 members and be established and conducted 
“wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the 
gaming is permitted by separate regulations. It is anticipated that 
this will cover bridge and whist clubs, which will replicate the 
position under the Gaming Act 1968. 

 
22.5  A members’ club must be permanent in nature, not established 

to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members 
equally. Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of 
Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations." 

 
22.6   The Commission Guidance also notes that "licensing authorities 

may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 
 

a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a 
members’ or commercial club or miners’ welfare institute 
and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit 
for which it has applied 

b) the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by 
children and/or young persons. 

c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been 
committed by the applicant while providing gaming 
facilities; 

d) a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the 
previous ten years; or 

e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the 
police. 

 
22.7   There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for 

premises which hold a Club Premises Certificate under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Schedule 12 paragraph 10). 

 



 

29 

22.8   The Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities’ 
states: "Under the fast-track procedure there is no opportunity 
for objections to be made by the Commission or the police, and 
the ground upon which an authority can refuse a permit are 
reduced." and "The grounds on which an application under the 
process may be refused are: 

 
a) that the club is established primarily for gaming, other 

than gaming prescribed under schedule 12. 

b) that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant 
provides facilities for other gaming; or 

c) that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued 
to the applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled." 

 
22.9  There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no 

child uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that 
the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code of 
practice about the location and operation of gaming machines.  

 
23.  Temporary Use Notices 

 
23.1  Part 9 of the Act sets out the position in relation to temporary 

use notices. These allow the use of premises for gambling 
where there is no premises licence but where a gambling 
operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing 
facilities for gambling. Premises that might be suitable for a 
temporary use notice would include hotels, conference centres, 
and sporting venues. 

 
23.2  There are a number of statutory limits as regards temporary use 

notices. Gambling Commission Guidance is noted. As with 
"premises", the definition of "a set of premises" will be a 
question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice 
that is given. 

 
23.3  We will apply the Gambling Commission Guidance which states: 

“In the Act “premises” is defined as including “any place”. In 
considering whether a place falls within the definition of “a set of 
premises”, licensing authorities will need to look at, amongst 
other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the 
premises. A large exhibition centre, for example, would be likely 
to come within the definition as it is properly one premises, and 
should not be granted a temporary use notice for 21 days in 
respect of each of its exhibition halls. But in relation to other 
covered areas, such as shopping centres, the licensing authority 
will need to consider whether different units are in fact different 
“sets of premises”, given that they may be occupied and 
controlled by different people.  

 
 



 

30 

24.  Occasional Use Notices: 
 
We have very little discretion as regards these notices aside from 
ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded. This licensing authority will, however, consider the definition 
of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of 
the notice. 



 

31 

APPENDIX 1 
 
SCHEDULE OF CONSULTEES TO THIS POLICY STATEMENT 
 

 Head of Development Management, Gosport Borough Council 

 Legal Section Gosport Borough Council 

 The Head of Environmental Health, Gosport Borough Council 

 The Chief Constable, Hampshire Police 

 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service Authority 

 Head of Child Protection, Hampshire County Council 

 H.M. Revenue & Customs 

 All persons who hold Betting Office and Bookmakers Permits in Gosport 
Borough 

 Representatives of persons who hold Society Lottery Registrations in 
Gosport Borough 

 Gaming Machine Suppliers who regularly apply for Gaming Permits in 
Gosport Borough 

 Representatives of Premises Licence Holders in Gosport 

 Representatives of Club Premises Certificate holders in Gosport 

 Hampshire County Council Trading Standards 

 General advertisement on the Council’s website. 

 



 

32 

APPENDIX 2 
 

SCHEDULE OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES GAMBLING ACT 2005 
 

Hampshire Constabulary  
 
Chief Officer of Police  
Town Hall 
Gosport 
Tel: 0845 045 45 45 (central number)  
 
Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service  
 
Service Delivery (Community Safety Delivery)  
Protection Department  
Southsea Fire Station  
Somers Road  
Southsea 
PO5 4LU  
 
Tel: 023 92855180  Fax: 023 92885175  
Email: : Csprotection.admin@hantsfire.gov.uk   Website: www.hantsfire.gov.uk  
 
Pollution & Environmental Protection Team  
 
Pollution & Environmental Protection Team  
Gosport Borough Council  
Town Hall 
High Street 
Gosport 
Tel: 02392584242   
Email: licensing@fareham.gov.uk  Website: www.gosport.gov.uk 
 
Health & Safety Team  
 
Health & Safety Team  
Gosport Borough Council  
Town Hall 
High Street 
Gosport 
Tel: 02392584242   
Email: health@fareham.gov.uk  Website: www.gosport.gov.uk 
 
Planning Authority  
Planning and Regeneration Services  
Gosport Borough Council  
Town Hall  
High Street 
Gosport 
 
Tel: 023 9254 5461    
Website: www.gosport.gov.uk 
 

mailto:Csprotection.admin@hantsfire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@fareham.gov.uk
mailto:health@fareham.gov.uk
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/


 

33 

The Local Weights and Measures Authority  
Head of Safety & Standards  
The Trading Standards Service  
Montgomery House  
Monarch Way  
Winchester  
SO22 5PW  
 
Tel 01962 833620  Email: 
liquor.licensing@hants.gov.uk  

 Website: www.hants.gov.uk 
 
Safeguarding Unit Children's' Services  
HCC CSD Safeguarding Unit  
Falcon House  
Monarch Way  
Winchester  
SO22 5PL  
 
Tel: 01962 876222  Email: 
child.protection@hants.gov.uk  

 Website: www.hants.gov.uk 
The Licensing Team  
Fareham Borough Council  
Civic Offices  
Civic Way  
Fareham 
PO16 7AZ  
 
Tel: 01329 236100      Fax:01329 821755  
Email: licensing@fareham.gov.uk    Website: www.fareham.gov.uk 
 
 
Public Health Licensing Manager  
Public Health Department  
1st Floor, Room 153  
Elizabeth II Court, South  
Hampshire County Council  
Winchester  
SO23 8TG 
  
Tel: 01329 236100 Use Fax no. 01962 847644 and 

address fax exactly as follows 
(including email address):  

 
Email: publichealth.licensing@hants.gov.uk 

 

http://www.hants.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@fareham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board Agenda :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 1 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD  
 
8th June 2022 
 
ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 

be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the meeting.  
Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the Regulatory 
Board is to be held. 

 
2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 

time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation. 

 
3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection by 

Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 above. 
 
4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with a 

summary of each recommendation. 
 

Agenda Item 8



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 2 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
INDEX 

Item Page 
No 

Appl. No. Address Recommendation 

 
 

01. 03-
08/1 

21/00431/FULL Unit 1 & 4 Wingate 
Workspace  25 Wingate 
Road  Gosport  Hampshire  
PO12 4HE   

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
02. 09-

11/1 
22/00073/FULL 60 St Marys Avenue  

Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 
2HX     

Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
03. 13-

15/1 
22/00105/FULL 2 Clover Close  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO13 0DZ     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
04. 17-

20/1 
22/00112/FULL 3 Curlew Walk  Gosport  

Hampshire  PO13 0RS     
Grant Permission 
subject to Conditions 

 
 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 3 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 01.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00431/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr James Carlin  Storm Cheerleading Ltd 
DATE REGISTERED: 27.09.2021 

 
RETROSPECTIVE CHANGE OF USE OF UNITS 1 AND 4 FROM USE CLASSES E(G), B2, 
B8 (INDUSTRIAL) USE TO CLASS E(D) (LEISURE) (as amended by planning statement 
received 18.10.21 and parking survey received 28.1.2022) 
Unit 1 & 4 Wingate Workspace  25 Wingate Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 4HE   

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the south side of Wingate Road and at its junction with Gunners Way.  
The application site consists of part of the ground floor of a two storey flat roofed block and a single 
storey building that are linked together and which is divided into 6 separate employment units.  
This application relates to units 1 and 4 at ground floor level and includes 4 parking areas to the 
south, east and west of the main building within the wider site. The combined capacity of the 
parking areas is 15 spaces. Planning permission was granted in June 2021 for the change of use 
of the wider site to uses falling within Classes E, B2 and B8 and for some external alterations.  The 
Class E uses were limited to light industry and leisure, with the latter being further restricted to one 
unit within the wider site and for limited hours. The site is located within an existing employment 
area as defined within the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.   
 
2. The surrounding area is a mix of commercial and residential uses.  To the south is an open, 
hard surfaced area that is outside of the application site that forms a parking area, with a further 
car park primarily serving The Range, beyond.  Industrial and leisure units are situated to the west 
and on the opposite side of Wingate Road to the north. These surrounding buildings are of typical 
industrial appearance, with roller shutters, storage yards and they primarily contain a range of light 
and heavy industrial use and storage uses. To the east, on the opposite side of Gunners Way, are 
the existing bungalows within Hamlet Way that have their rear and side elevations facing the site, 
some 22m from the buildings on the site. 
 
3. The proposals are for the change of use of part of the building (units 1 and 4) from a flexible use 
within Class E(g), B2, B8 to a leisure use (Class E(d)). The leisure use indicated in the submission 
was principally for cheerleading/dance. The applicant has provided additional information in the 
form of a revised Planning Statement, in part to address some of the concerns raised by objections 
to the proposal in respect of the operation of the business and customer parking.  In terms of 
parking the applicant has advised that in addition to the 15 allocated spaces within the application 
site, they have also been given permission from the landlord of the building to use the parking 
allocated down the southern side of the unit and at the rear (west) outside of standard business 
hours, taking the total to 24 parking spaces during these times. A revised drop-off route has been 
indicated on an amended plan within the revised Planning Statement, which would be to the rear of 
the building. The applicant submitted a parking survey in support of the application on the 28 
January 2022. 
 
4. The revised Planning Statement indicates that in addition to the cheerleading classes that are 
run in the evening, Stay and Play sessions operate during the day. Three 105 minute sessions are 
run daily between 9am and 3pm, except for Wednesdays, where there are two morning sessions 
and at weekends where the times are not fixed due to private hire or classes for cheerleading and 
dance. The applicant has advised that these sessions are limited to 15 adults per session meaning 
there should never be more than 15 cars during a session at one time. They have also indicated 
that each person who books a session gets a confirmation email asking them to not park on 
Gunners Way and to use the allocated parking or roads within the industrial estate. In terms of 
employment the applicant advises that they will be employing 2 more Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
staff members taking it to 4 in total. Additionally there are 8 Part Time Equivalent (PTE) staff. 
 
 
 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 4 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

Relevant Planning History 
 
15/00479/FULL - continued use of part of ground floor as place of worship (synagogue) (Class D1) 
- permitted 01.12.15 
21/00195/FULL - change of use from class B2/D1 to classes E, B2 and B8 including external 
alterations to form 7no. individual units - permitted 06.07.21 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP3  Spatial Strategy 
 LP10  Design 
 LP16  Employment Land 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 LP46  Pollution Control 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
Consultations 
  
 Local Highway Authority No objection. Trip analysis indicated that this 

would result in a similar level of trips which is 
acceptable in this instance. 
 
Parking is a matter to be considered by 
Gosport Borough Council as the Local 
Planning Authority to make sure the 
proposed parking falls into their adopted 
standards. 

  
 Building Control No objection. 
  
 Economic Development and Regeneration No comments received. 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
26 letters of objection (to original submission) 
Issues raised: 
- increased volume of traffic when picking up/dropping off 
- detrimental effect other businesses in the industrial units 
- highway safety 
- use is causing parking problems within the local vicinity 
- HCC Highways should review the position 
- capacity would no doubt allow 100's visits at any one time 
- understand yellow lines may be put on Gunners Way making situation worse 
- what is to stop another Leisure use now operating there   
- Council has not assessed the parking when allowing new garages and building company  
- the location in the middle of a garage heavy estate looking for places to leave cars for MOT's and 

service is just not working 
- use has already commenced before permission is granted 
- one way system shown does not work as there is a large wooden bollard in the way 
- going by the on-going issues with traffic I can only presume the parents are not abiding by the 

traffic routes indicated 
- the businesses use Gunners Way as their own car park   
 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 5 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

3 letters of support (to original submission) 
Issues raised: 
- Storm has the most allocated parking on the whole of Wingate Road estate 
- it would appear that unit 1 and 4 Wingate Workspace has 14+ allocated parking spaces which are 

being used by unit 1 and 4 
- numerous cars are transferred from workshops on Wingate and Alphage Road in the early 

morning 
- the allocated parking spaces to 25 Wingate Road are used by customers of other businesses. 
- since coming out of lockdown everything has got busy again 
- prior to the first lockdown some units on Wingate Road were vacant. These have been 

refurbished and are now thriving. Surely this is a good thing 
- from my direct experience the lack of parking provision for 1, 2 and 3 Wingate Road and cars 

parked awaiting repair has resulted in Gunners Way filling up 
- appears to be a well-co-ordinated effort to suggest Storm have caused the parking problem 
- 25 Wingate Road has 32+ parking spaces which are carefully managed and not fully occupied 
- the original car park for the 1976 Fort Brockhurst Industrial Estate is fenced off and unused 
- fully support the applicant in his quest to deliver an amazing service to our community  
- the applicant has communicated throughout the past 12 months ref parking, making sure 

customers park appropriately 
- we have agreed that Storm Athletics may use our parking spaces after 3.30pm Mon - Fri and 

during the weekend  
 
6 letters of objection (to amended Planning Statement) 
Issues raised: 
- highway safety and parking 
- cannot force the 15 cars into their allocated spaces  
- GBC did not assess the parking issues properly when planning permission was given for 7 extra 

units 
- proposal isn't in a location that anyone can deem safe or justifiable. It is impacting on other local 

businesses and local residents  
- what is to stop them lifting the restrictions having a larger capacity?  
- If restricting their capacity for 15 adults for 15 car spaces, where are their 4 FTE and 8 PTE 

meant to park? 
- Other leisure use within Wingate workspace has restricted hours. There is a potential for another 

large leisure business to operate and grow even bigger, and the problem get even worse  
 
3 letters of support (to amended Planning Statement) 
Issues raised: 
- the applicant is a well-established business operating for many years on the estate without any 

issue  
- historically parking has not been an issue, however, since other businesses have moved into the 

estate  this has contributed to the current parking situation 
- problems with parking have coincided with the lifting of lockdown and new businesses opening on 

the estate 
- businesses in the vicinity saying they have operated for x time without complaints of parking is 

false, due to Covid restrictions  
- other businesses with restricted parking, have told customers to park on Gunners Way, a public 

highway. 
- witnessed parents parking in Gunners Way and using other businesses, as Storm is the most 

visible building on Gunners Way, blame is being attributed to Storm 
- applicants have directed customers to park in the allocated spaces  
- the main issue seems to be the parking on Gunners Way and business competition in the area 
- the unit is safely accessible by customers who park in the overflow car park 
- double yellow lines on Gunners Way would remove objections to the change of usage  
- much of the parking that's taken up on Gunners Way is by commercial vehicles 
- "ideal drop off for older athletes" is directly opposite Hamlet Way   
 
 
 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 6 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

1 letter of observation (to amended Planning Statement) 
 
Issues raised: 
-  staff from Storm are regularly outside trying to guide their clients to their parking area 
- parking spaces for Wingate Workspace are frequently used by visitors to the area who park and 

walk to other premises 
- Wild Wonderland has been proactive in ensuring their clients park on Wingate Road and Gunners 

Way 
- this Office parking and 10-12 of the other Wingate Workspace spaces are available to Storm and 

Unit 6 from 16.00 each day and weekends. 
- double yellow lines would control parking and enhance highway safety 
- original parking area for the estate is fenced off 
 
4 letters of objection (to Parking Survey) 
Issues raised: 
- concern at traffic generated by new business. 
- concern regarding traffic impact of the new development. 
- concern regarding road safety impact of the development. 
- in order to be of substance the parking survey should have been carried out independently. 
- site is not suitable for a leisure facility for children. 
- Southern Water have had to be called on numerous occasions due to items such as wet wipes 

and nappies being flushed away. 
- area outside the premises is used as a smoking / meeting place by parents and waste arising 

makes it unsightly. 
- Business should not be open late of be given an alcohol licence as this would result in noise and 

disturbance to neighbours  
 
1 letter of observation (to Parking Survey) 
Issues raised: 
- main issue is parking 
- previously available parking area is now fenced off with some of the remaining spaces sub let 
- the car parking at Fort Brockhurst Industrial Estate is for sale 
- CCTV evidence indicates poor parking, smoking zones and garage car parking as well as garage 

car parking and the dangers of children crossing Wingate Road 
- many of the spaces in Wingate Road are used by others not associated with the property 
- the closure of the Range overflow car park has made parking more difficult 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. Any future applications for leisure uses in the area would be assessed with regard to the merits 
of that application and all relevant material considerations at the time of the application. This 
proposal does not seek late opening hours or an alcohol license, which in any case would be dealt 
with under the Licensing regime. The flushing of toilets with wipes or nappies and the impact of this 
on local drainage is a matter for Southern Water and is not material to this application. Therefore 
the main issues in determining this application are whether: the development is acceptable in 
principle; the change of use of the premises to a cheerleading and dance school would result in 
harm to the safe and efficient operation of the highways network; and whether there would be a 
harmful impact on residential amenity. 
 
2. The site falls within the Urban Area Boundary, within which Policy LP3 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan (GBLP) 2011-2029 permits development, as long as proposals accord with other 
national and local plan policies.  The site is also within the Brockhurst Industrial Estate, which 
under Policy LP16 is safeguarded employment land for B1, B2 and B8 Uses. Since September 
2020 B1 Uses fall within the new Class E (Part g - offices, research and development and 
industrial processes), while B2 and B8 Uses have been retained.  
 
3.Under Policy LP16 planning permission for other types of economic development other than 
Class E(g), B2 and B8 are acceptable on protected employment land, if it can be demonstrated 
that:  



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 7 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

a) the use will generate similar or higher levels of employment than the existing use;  
b) the use is compatible with neighbouring uses within the employment site; and  
c) the relevant tests in Policy LP29 regarding town centre uses are met.  
 
4. The application states that there will be an increase of employment at the site from the previous 
4 Full Time Equivalents (FTE) / 2 Part Time Equivalents (PTE) to 4FTE / 8 PTE. The number of 
work hours is not provided, so while there is an increase in personnel, it is not clear if it is an 
increase in employment. In terms of part b) of the Policy, there are examples of where the 
proposed use is compatible with industrial uses.  
 
5. No sequential test has been provided to support part c) of the Policy, however, due to the 
amendments to the Use Class Order, the proposed use overlaps with employment uses. 
Furthermore, the nature of activities is such that there are unlikely to be premises in a more 
sequentially preferable location that would be a suitable alternative. The use would contribute 
towards recreation and exercise within the Borough, providing multiple health benefits. This would 
help achieve Objective 18 of the Local Plan in improving the Borough's health, which is also 
supported by multiple paragraphs within the NPPF. 
In addition, part 4 of Policy LP32 supports new sport and leisure facilities within the Borough 
provided that:  
a) they have good pedestrian and cycle access;  
b) there is good access to public transport services, particularly for facilities serving the whole 
Borough;  
c) they are well-designed; and  
d) they have the potential to be used as a multi-use facility.  
 
Parts a) and b) of Policy LP32 are addressed in more detail below, while the design of the unit is 
minimal but appropriate for the use, and may have potential to support other sporting uses.  
 
6. Due to the significant distance separation with neighbouring residential properties to the south 
and east the development would not result in harmful increased levels of noise or disturbance and 
would accord with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan. 
 
7. The applicant's business has currently 534 enrolments which equates to 215 individual athletes, 
whose attendance at the site would be spread out over the days of operation / classes. From the 
class timetables provided it has been shown that 12-20 athletes attend the site at any one time. 
With regard to employees (based on the scenario depicted) there is a demand for a maximum of 5 
car parking spaces, with a day-to-day average of 3 - 4 parking spaces being required. It is noted 
that parents are not permitted to wait or view sessions and as such it is possible that the parking 
demands for the site would be less than those associated with the currently permitted commercial 
use. Overall travel demands and vehicular movements associated with the site are likely to be 
increased, however, due to the timings of the classes many will be for the most part outside the 
main operational times of the other businesses on the estate. 
 
8. The extant lawful use of light / general industry would, under the adopted parking SPD require 
17 car parking spaces based on a unit of 770 square meters at a ratio of 1 space 45 square 
metres. In their comments, the Local Highway Authority (LHA) state that the proposed change of 
use will result in a similar amount of trips compared to the existing use, which is acceptable to 
them, and as such they have raised no objection.  With regards to parking, the LHA have drawn 
out in their comments that the current parking issues in the area are not considered to be as a 
result of the proposed change of use, but are actually a result of the existing uses in the vicinity of 
the site. 
 
9. Under the adopted Parking SPD there are no uses listed within the Parking Standards that 
would be directly comparable to that proposed.  The proposed use will, by its nature, have a very 
specific parking demand profile and its location and demographic will have a direct bearing on the 
parking demands generated.  Based on the existing authorised use there is likely to have been an 
under provision of parking at the site, which is considered to be a situation that is prevalent within 
the wider estate. This has led to significant pressures for on street parking impacting upon the 
surrounding highway network, which cannot be wholly attributed to the proposed use of the site or 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 8 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

to any one of the surrounding uses. Given the nature of the use to which this application relates 
and the likely demand for parking that it generates is not considered to be significantly above the 
number of on-site parking spaces that are available to the operator. In order to ensure that the 
parking detailed in the application is retained for that purpose a suitably worded condition is 
recommended, should members be minded to approve the application. 
 
10. Officers have undertaken numerous site visits, at varying times of the day and week and much 
of the on street parking would appear to be associated with commercial uses, which correlates with 
the comments made by the LHA. 
 
11. It is not possible to differentiate which uses are exerting the most pressure for on street 
parking.  However, there are often commercial vehicles parked on-street, together with vehicles 
that on occasion appear to have been parked on street but without valid road tax (such vehicles 
have been reported to the DVLA by officers when observed) which indicates these vehicles may be 
associated with motor related uses in the locality rather than the operation of the use to which this 
application relates.   
 
12. It has been observed regularly that on street parking takes place at and around junctions, 
thereby having a detrimental impact upon highway safety. It has also been observed that the 
periods of greatest pressure for on street parking do not necessarily coincide with the main hours 
of operation of the use that subject of this application.  Based upon the comments of the LHA and 
the on-site observations of Officers, there is no evidence that the concerns regarding parking in the 
area around the application site are resulting directly from, or are attributable to the operation of 
the business at the application site.  Rather it must be acknowledged that the proposal is one of a 
number of uses within the immediate vicinity, many of which contribute to a greater or lesser extent 
to the parking and highway safety issues in Gunners Way, and the surrounding highway network.  
  
13. Recent meetings with HCC Officers have indicated that they are aware of the parking issues in 
the area and have acknowledged their impact on highway safety. HCC Officers have indicated the 
potential for future on street parking regulation in the area, however, at this point there are no firm 
proposals (which would be brought forward by HCC). 
 
14. In the absence of any evidence that demonstrates that the use to which this application relates 
is exacerbating the existing parking and highway issues within the wider area, it is considered that 
a reason for refusal relating to parking or highway matters could not be substantiated at any 
appeal.  
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
1093-100 REV B, Location Plan. 
1093-100 REV A, Block. 
1093 - 104 C   Proposed Floorplan/Parking Layout     
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 2.  The parking facilities shown on drawing 1093 - 104 C   Proposed Floorplan/Parking Layout 
shall be retained and shall be used for no other purpose than for the parking of vehicles. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate car parking, turning, loading 
and unloading facilities are provided and retained, and to comply with LP23 of the Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking SPD. 



32

20

81

H
A

M
LE

T 
W

A
Y11

21

2

B
4

G
U

NN
ER

S W
A

Y

Estate

18

1

Industrial

ESS

7

B
1

12 22

1

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

73

56

48

9

38

33

3

32

A
L

P
H

A
G

E
 R

O
A

D

19

G
U

N
N

E
R

S
 W

A
Y

Brockhurst

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1000Gosport Borough Council



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 9 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 02.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/00073/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr D Edney   
DATE REGISTERED: 07.02.2022 

 
ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND EXTENSION TO EXISTING 
GARAGE 
60 St Marys Avenue  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2HX     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application property is located in a prominent position at the eastern end of St. Mary's 
Avenue where it adjoins Bentham Road at a 90 degree bend. It forms the south western half of a 
pair of two storey semi-detached dwellings (nos. 60/62) with a double rounded bay under a hipped 
tiled roof. Whereas other houses on these two roads are set on rectangular plots with the property 
frontage set back approximately 10 metres from the public highway, number 60 and 62, and the 
pair of semi-detached properties opposite, number 53 St. Mary's Avenue and 22 Bentham Road, 
occupy triangular plots orientated at a 45 degree angle to the highway. The rear gardens of 
numbers 60 and 62 have a maximum depth of 25 metres and a maximum width of 35 metres and 
are separated by very dense trees and hedging. There are allotments beyond the rear boundary, 
located behind a row of established mature trees. 
 
2. The application property has a large detached double garage adjacent to the western boundary 
that is 5m high to the ridge, 2.9m to the eaves, 5.9m deep by 5.3m wide and capable of 
accommodating one vehicle and is accessed via a driveway some 10m deep. On the rear elevation 
of the existing dwelling, there is a single storey extension (conservatory that is 2m deep and has a 
pitched roof, 2.75m to the ridge and 2.1m to the eaves). To the rear of the application dwelling is a 
substantial rear garden that is approximately 25m deep by 20m wide. The boundary treatment 
between the adjoining semis number 58 and 60 comprises a 1.6 metre high wooden fence.  
 
3. Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey rear extension and an extension 
to the existing garage. The proposed single storey rear extension would be 5m deep, 3m, longer 
than the existing extension that would be demolished as part of the development. The single storey 
extension would have a flat roof with an eaves height of 3.1m and a lantern that would project to 
3.7m. The extension would be set in from the adjoining boundary by approximately 0.35m with 62 
St Mary's Avenue to the east. The extension would be finished in brick to match the existing 
dwelling. The existing garage would be extended to 10.7m at its widest point on the rear elevation 
(8m visible from St Mary's Avenue) an increase of 4m. The existing hipped part of the roof with 56 
St Mary's Avenue would be retained and the roof would be extended to cover the increased width 
of the garage, with an eaves height of 5m and an unchanged eaves of 2.9m. As the garage would 
be extended towards the existing dwelling, the eastern boundary would be tapered. On the 
southern boundary of the proposed garage, two windows would be installed with an access door 
on the eastern elevation. The garage door openings would be 2.8m wide and the internal depth for 
car parking would be 5.8m. The garage would be finished in brick to match the existing dwelling. 
The proposed garage would be capable of accommodating two car parking spaces. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K17592 - demolition of detached garage and erection of replacement side garage and erection of 
two storey dwelling with integral garage and associated amenity space - refused 15.09.08 
K17592/1 - demolition of detached garage and erection of two storey dwelling with integral garage 
and associated amenity space - refused 13.11.08 and appeal dismissed 29.5.09 
17/00075/FULL - erection of 3 bedroom bungalow with associated cycle and refuse storage and 
hard and soft landscaping - refused 20.04.2017 
17/00279/FULL - erection of 3 bedroom bungalow with associated cycle and refuse storage and 
hard and soft landscaping - refused 11.08.2017 and appeal dismissed 09.01.2018 
20/00286/FULL - erection of detached non-self-contained granny annex in rear garden - refused 
24.09.2020 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 10 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

21/00022/FULL - erection of detached non-self-contained granny annex in rear garden - permitted 
08.04.2021 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP10  Design 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
Consultations 
  
 Nil  
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
1 letter of objection  
Issues raised:- 
- had the size of the single storey rear extension being of normal proportions it would have had no 

detrimental effect; however, its enormous size will cause significant impact 
- no information is given of the height of the extension, but this can be ascertained to be about 

3.15m  
- the present dividing wall, to which our respective conservatories are affixed, measures 3.10m in 

depth with 2.66m at its highest point sloping to 2.10m. This wall will remain. The new wall is to be 
built immediately behind the existing one and will be 5m x 3.15m, completely overshadowing our 
conservatory, extending 2m further and 1m higher than the existing one 

- for 4 months, our conservatory is heated by the winter sun and a small electric fire. If this wall is 
built, because of its height, there will be little or no winter sun.  

- the conservatory also provides the light for our dining room which will be significantly reduced 
and, instead of just needing a light just at breakfast time, one will probably be needed all day 

- if the wall is built in any of the summer months it would cause a change of lifestyle. We have lived 
here for 55 years and now, as nonagenarians, we are ever present and, due to noise and lack of 
privacy, we would be unable to use the patio in front of the conservatory which is a normal habit 

- at this time of the year the conservatory, with the door open, is the most used room in the house. 
It would likely be unusable 

- in the letter from the Planning department of G.B.C. it states that the reduction of property value is 
not normally taken into account. 'Normally' implies that there could be exceptions and this is one 
where we believe it should be considered as this would, undoubtedly, be the case. 

 
Principal Issues 
 
1. Loss of property value is not a material planning consideration. The proposal does not include 
the removal of or erection of a boundary wall. The main issues are, therefore, whether the design 
is acceptable, whether there would be a significant impact on amenity and, whether the garage is 
suitable for parking/storage.  
 
2. The siting, scale and materials of the proposed single storey rear extension and garage would 
be acceptable to the recipient and neighbouring dwellings and wider streetscene in design terms 
and would accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029 and the Design 
SPD 2014, subject to a condition to secure matching materials. 
 
3. Despite the increase in scale of the garage, given its siting in relation to neighbouring dwellings 
and the retention of the hipped roof in relation to 58 St Mary's Avenue, this part of the proposal 
would not have a significant impact on amenity with regards to loss of light, outlook, privacy or 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 11 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

increased sense of enclosure and would accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011 - 2029. 
 
4. The adjoining dwelling has raised concerns that the proposed single storey rear extension would 
significantly reduce light into their conservatory and the usability of this room and patio as a result. 
Although the depth of the extension would be increased in depth from 2m to 5m, it is not 
considered that the scale of the proposed extension would have a significant impact on the 
amenities of the adjoining occupiers in respect of loss of light, outlook privacy or increased sense 
of enclosure. The proposal would therefore accord with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011 - 2029. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
Site Location and Block Plan (shown on existing plans) 
CFA FULL 01 - Proposed Garage Extension and House Extension   
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture, those on the existing building 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



10

38
1

Allotment

8

53

47

53

32

7

15

3.7m

18

M
O

U
N

T
 P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 R

O
A

D

ST MARY'S

B
E

N
T

H
A

M
 R

O
A

D

43

22

C
P

51

35

BEECHCROFT ROAD

42

7

12

El Sub Sta
6

1

31
62

52

1

6

17

2

20

Gardens

9

33

23

12

AVENUE

8

15

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 13 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 03.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/00105/FULL  
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Spinks   
DATE REGISTERED: 04.03.2022 

 
CONVERSION OF GARAGE (as amended by plans received 05.04.22) 
2 Clover Close  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 0DZ     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The site is located on the south side of Clover Close and comprises a two-storey detached 
house. It has an attached garage with a pitched roof on its western side, linked to the neighbours 
(no.12 Honeysuckle Close). The dwelling is constructed from red brick with a tiled roof. It has a 
front porch canopy linked to the garage. On the rear elevation is a single storey extension with a 
pitched flat roof that extends approximately 5m beyond the rear elevation. On the side and 
attached to the rear of the garages is a single storey flat roofed extension, which projects 0.5m 
beyond the rear elevation and up to the western boundary. The rear garden boundary tapers 
creating a wedged shape plot.  The front garden has been partially hard surfaced with space for 2 
vehicles. 
 
2. The surrounding area comprises residential properties of various styles. Number 4 to the east is 
a detached property with a garage adjacent to the application site's rear extension. To the west are 
the properties within Honeysuckle Close (6-12) which are two-storey houses, with the rear 
gardens, which are between 9 and 10m deep extending up to the application property's boundary. 
Additional dwellings are located on the opposite side of Clover Close approximately 21m away with 
views over the highway. To the rear are the properties within Heather Close, some 28m away.    
 
3. The proposals were originally for the erection of a first floor side extension and the conversion of 
the existing garage. The proposals have been amended and the application now relates only to the 
conversion of the garage. The garage door would be replaced with a window and matching brick 
plinth and additional accommodation, with a study and utility room indicated. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
K15071 - erection of first floor side extension - refused 20.04.98 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP1  Sustainable Development 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
Consultations 
  
 Nil  
 
 
 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 14 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
2 letters of objection (to original plans) 
Issues raised 
- overbearing 
- loss of privacy 
 
3 letters of support (to original plans) 
Issues raised: 
- fully support the application that's been proposed, similar or the same plans have been granted to 

properties in and attached to the close with no issues 
- understand privacy has been a concern but I can currently see into both the gardens and more of 

that side of the street from my rear bedroom windows 
- no objections to the extension as viewed from my property as windows already overlook the front 

of my property and adding another window will not be harmful 
 
1 letter of representation (to amended plans) 
Issues raised 
- amended plans address initial objection which is withdrawn 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. The main issues for consideration in this instance are whether the proposals would have a 
detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties, would be have a 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area, and would make adequate 
provision for the parking of vehicles. 
 
2.  The alterations to the front of the garage are considered to be acceptable in design terms and 
would not harm the character and appearance of the property, or area. Given the position of the 
window at ground floor level and fronting the driveway the proposals would not have a detrimental 
impact on the amenities of the occupiers of adjacent properties. The proposals are, therefore, in 
accordance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
3. The proposals would result in the loss of the existing garage, and given the property is a 3 
bedroom dwelling, two off-street parking spaces should be provided. The existing property has a 
driveway that can accommodate the two parking spaces and as such the proposals would comply 
with the Parking Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) in this respect.  A condition requiring 
two spaces to be retained is considered appropriate, given the loss of the garage. The proposals 
would, therefore, retain adequate provision for parking off-street and the proposals comply with the 
aims and objectives of Policy LP23 and the Parking SPD. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
Location Plan; Block Plan; 6025.22.2.REVC 
 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 15 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
 3.  The materials to be used shall match in type, colour and texture, those on the existing building 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the existing, and to 
comply with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  a) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a minimum of two 
spaces for the parking of vehicles, as shown on the approved block plan have been provided. 
b) The parking facilities shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate car parking is provided and 
retained, and to comply with LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking 
SPD. 



11

10

17

11

47

CLOSE

4

1

32

18

39

24

1

Pond

11

32

14

15

13

22

27

26

40

COW
SLIP

C
L

O
S

E

7

25

3

MYRTLE

5

CLOSE

14

4

15

3

36

15

HEATHER

35

26

1

2

11

12

ESS

W
ard B

dy

16

21

37

4

8

1

21

10

53

12

12

15

18

19

7

15

CLOVER

7

35

41

39

CLOSE

19 to 29

14

2

CLOSE

7

22

6

20

27

7

2

DANDELION

31

34

10

38

49

20

14

33

C
R

to

24

1

14

23

Shelter

24

15

3
9

ESS

11

4

W
Y

C
H

 LA
N

E

30

6

2

6

8

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
 C

L
O

S
E

43

29

25

45

10

H
O

N
E

Y
S

U
C

K
L

E
 C

L

51

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1250Gosport Borough Council



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 17 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
ITEM NUMBER: 04.   
APPLICATION NUMBER: 22/00112/FULL  
APPLICANT: Nicola Sallis   
DATE REGISTERED: 01.03.2022 

 
ERECTION OF DETACHED ANNEXE 
3 Curlew Walk  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 0RS     

 
The Site and the proposal 
 
1. The application site is located on the western side of Curlew Walk and the property is a 
detached bungalow constructed of red brick and uPVC windows and doors under a pitched, tiled 
roof with a gable to the side elevations and a rear projection. The site has a rear garden enclosed 
with 1.8 metre high close boarded timber fencing. The immediately adjacent dwelling to the south 
east is 4 Curlew Walk and to the north, 2 Curlew Walk, both of which are detached bungalows of 
similar design to the application dwelling. To the south east lays the rear of 5 Heron Way. To the 
east of the site is the Brookers Field sports pitches.  
 
2. The proposal is for the erection of a single storey fibre board clad outbuilding. The proposed 
structure would be sited adjacent to the southern and western boundaries of the site and would 
measure 8.8 metres in depth, 6.3 metres in width with a dual pitched roof with gables at the 
northern and southern elevations and a maximum height of 3.4 metres. The proposal would have 
an eaves height of 2 metres and would have fenestration to the southern, eastern and western 
elevations and rooflights to the eastern and western roof slopes. The proposal would provide, a 
summer room / gym with bathroom with toilet and a storage room. 
 
3.  A previous application, made under reference 21/00443/FULL, for a detached annexe of an 
identical design to the development applied for here but the accommodation provided would have 
comprised a bedroom, living room and bathroom. The inclusion of a bedroom would have made a 
change from 3 to 4 bedrooms at the property which would have generated the requirement for an 
additional parking space at the site in order to be in compliance with the Parking SPD.  No change 
to the parking at the site was proposed and as such application 21/00443/FULL was refused for 
the following reason:   
 
"The proposal fails to provide adequate provision for off-street parking in accordance with the 
adopted Parking SPD. The proposal also fails to demonstrate that it would not lead to a detrimental 
impact upon highway safety and the convenience of other highway users. As such the proposal is 
be contrary to Policy LP23 of the Gosport Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking SPD." 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
21/00443/FULL - erection of detached annex - refused - 28.01.2022 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029: 
 LP10  Design 
 LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 

2014 
 Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), July 2021 
 
 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 18 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

Consultations 
 
Nil 
 
Response to Public Advertisement 
 
6 letters of objection received. 
Issues raised: 
- proposal will be overbearing to neighbours. 
- the proposal will lead to additional noise and disturbance. 
- the proposal will obstruct views from  within neighbours rear gardens. 
- will affect light coming into rear gardens. 
- the gap between the proposal and the fence is too narrow making maintenance impossible and 

leading to damage. 
- the proposal will overload shared sewerage connections. 
- the proposal will lead to additional traffic. 
- granting the proposal will lead to a precedent for similar development within the area. 
- the proposed gym may be used for commercial purposes. 
 
Principal Issues 
 
1. Concerns have been raised in letters of objection with regard to the setting of a precedent for 
this form of development elsewhere in the Peel Common estate. Each application for planning 
permission is assessed on its own merits with regard to the circumstances of each site and any 
relevant material considerations and as such any future application for planning permission would 
be assessed in accordance with this principle. Concerns are also raised with regard to the impact 
of the proposal upon views from gardens and properties neighbouring the proposals. The right to 
the view is not enshrined within the planning legislation and as such is not a material consideration 
in the assessment of this application. Concern is also raised with regard to the gap between the 
proposed building and existing fences being too narrow to allow maintenance leading to damage. 
Damage to property during construction or resulting from development is a private matter between 
the developer and the affected third party and is not material to the consideration of this application 
for planning permission. Concerns with regard to the impact of the proposal with regard to private 
sewer connections are also a private matter between the developer and the affected parties and 
not material to the assessment of this application. Accordingly, the main issues for consideration in 
the determination of this application are the impact on the appearance of the design of the 
proposal, its impact on the appearance of the locality, the amenities of the occupiers of adjacent 
properties and any impact upon parking.  
 
2. The proposal would lead to the erection of a relatively large structure within the rear garden of 
the site immediately adjacent to, and spanning much of the width of the rear boundary of the site, 
however when the overall size of the application plot is taken into account it is considered that the 
proposal would not represent a cramped or excessive form of development. It is also considered 
that the design of the proposed outbuilding is appropriate to its domestic setting and would not 
appear out of character with the built forms of the surrounding area. Whist, as mentioned before 
the proposed outbuilding is a large structure, its height and scale remain subservient to that of the 
main application dwelling and it is not considered to be overly dominant in this regard. It is 
therefore considered that the proposed outbuilding is acceptable in design terms and complies with 
the guidance within the Design SPD and the requirements of Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan 20011-2029 in this regard.  
 
3. The proposed outbuilding would have windows to the front and both side elevations as well as 
rooflights within the eastern and western roofslopes. Due to the single storey scale of the proposal 
views out of the windows and doors toward neighbours dwellings and private amenity space would 
be blocked by the existing boundary treatments. The rooflights are located at high level within the 
living room and given this fact would provide light and views of the sky to the occupants. As such 
these windows are also considered not to lead to a loss of privacy or overlooking impacts to the 
detriment of the amenities of neighbours. 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 19 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

 
4. The proposed structure is to be located within the rear garden of the property and is of single 
storey scale with is roof slopes angled such that they slope away from the rear elevations of the 
neighbouring dwellings. The closest neighbouring dwelling to the proposed outbuilding is No. 3 
Curlew Walk, the rear elevation of which is separated by 3.3 metres from the proposal. The rear 
elevation of 5 Heron Way to the rear of the site is separated from the proposal by 10.6 metres 
while the rear elevation of 3 Heron Way (also to the rear) is separated by 8 metres. Given the 
height of the proposal it will undoubtedly be visible from within the neighbouring properties. 
However, it is considered that its single storey scale would prevent this impact from being 
overbearing or result in a loss of light to the detriment of the amenity of neighbours due to its single 
storey scale. Whilst there may be additional shadowing within the rear gardens of neighbours at 
certain times of the day these impacts are not considered to be of such detriment as to warrant 
refusal of the application on these grounds.    
 
5. The proposal is for residential accommodation within a residential area and it is considered that 
the development would not in and of itself lead to additional noise outputs than might be 
reasonably expected within a residential area from time to time.  Concerns are also raised that the 
proposal may be used as a commercial gym. The application proposal is for residential 
accommodation and any change of use to a commercial gym would require a separate application 
for planning permission.  Accordingly it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable 
in respect of its impact upon the amenities of neighbours and is in accordance with the guidance 
within the Design SPD and complies with this aspect of Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029.  
 
6. The proposed extension would not provide an additional bedroom and as such, as set out in the 
Parking SPD, the proposed development results in no uplift in the level of parking required at the 
site.  Concerns are raised that the use of the rooms outlined in this application will change upon 
occupation of the proposal. In this regard it must be noted that applications for planning permission 
must be determined on the basis of the information submitted.  It is not for Officers to forecast the 
future intentions of the applicant or to make a determination based upon a perceived intention to 
deceive, unless there is solid and irrefutable evidence of such an intention available. As the 
addition of a bedroom within the outbuilding would lead to an increase in the parking required to 
serve the site and no information regarding the availability of such parking has been provided it is 
considered that a condition that prevents the use of the building to provide overnight 
accommodation could reasonably be imposed, and such a condition is therefore recommended.  
On this basis it is considered that the proposal would not lead to increased pressure for on street 
parking to the detriment of highways safety and as such would comply with Policy LP23 and the 
guidance within the Parking SPD.  The proposal is therefore considered to have overcome the 
reason for the refusal of application 21/00443/FULL. 
 
Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission 
 
 
Subject to the following condition(s):- 
 
 
 1.  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years beginning 
with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 
 2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
P200 Proposed Ground Floor Plan, 
P202 Proposed Site Plan, 
P203 Elevation N&S, 



Regulatory Board :  8th June 2022 
   

   
DC-AGENDA-SPB-27.05.22 Page 20 of 20 DC/UNI-form Template 

P204 Elevation E&W, 
P206 Block Plan, 
P207 Location Plan, 
Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 3.  a) Construction above slab level shall not commence until details of all external facing and 
roofing materials have been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory, and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029. 
 
 4.  The development hereby permitted shall not be used to provide overnight sleeping 
accommodation, and at no time shall a separate dwelling be established. 
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate car parking is provided and 
retained, and to comply with LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking 
Supplementary Planning Document. 
 
 



ED Bdy

12

11

2

1

C
ur

le
w

 W
al

k

Sta

0.91m
 T

B

Sub

0.91m

El

1

R
H

75

C
F

8

H
ER

O
N

 W
A

Y

1

0.
91

m

7

Allotment Gardens

76

6

D
ra

in

12

HERON WAY

F
u

lm
ar W

alk
3

41

17

15
R

H

14

9

Teal W
alk

8.5m

7

D
ef

9

2

1

H
E

R
O

N
 W

A
Y

(C) Crown Copyright. Scale: 1:1000Gosport Borough Council


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2022
	Minutes

	7 GAMBLING - REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
	Draft GBC  Gambling Statement of Principles 2022 - 2025

	8 Report of the Development Manager
	Final RB Agenda 08.06.2022.pdf
	ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS
	INDEX
	Subject to the following condition(s):-
	Subject to the following condition(s):-
	Subject to the following condition(s):-
	Subject to the following condition(s):-



	Item 1 - Wingate Road.pdf
	Item 2 - 60 St Marys Ave.pdf
	Item 3 - 3 Curlew Walk.pdf
	Item 4 - 2 Clover Close.pdf


